**FORM 13
BRIEF OF APPELLANT***

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals
[In The Supreme Court]

RECEIVED

JUL 08 2016

SC Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM RICHLAND COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

UNKNOWN

Case No. 2016-000997

South Carolina Department of Mental Health
State Accident Fund

Respondent,

v

Harry Reese

Appellant.

[INITIAL] BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Harry Reese
8408 Little John Drive
Columbia, South Carolina 29209
(803) 851-3182
Pro Se

* Under Rule 267(e), SCACR, the cover of the final briefs should be the following colors: brief of appellant - blue; brief of respondent - red; reply brief - gray; and amicus curiae or intervenor - green.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On September 5, 2013, the Appellant requested Employee Assistance Program (EAP) from Ms. Vicki Brown, Columbia Area Mental Health Center Director of Human Resources due to “ongoing crippling employment issues that are consistently affecting my work performance and my personal life”. Ms. Brown, by the Respondent’s policy should have submitted the injury report immediately after the Appellant notified her of the injury; however, she did not. On September 6, 2013, Ms. Brown provided the Appellant the contact information for EAP services with Mr. Don Helms. On September 9, 2013, the Appellant had his first appointment with Mr. Helms who, after hearing the Appellant’s experiences, concluded that the Appellant’s mental breakdown was due to work-related stress. The Appellant consistently followed up with Mr. Helms regarding the referral to Scott Psychiatric Center, and Mr. Helms consistently informed the Appellant that he was unable to provide the Appellant with a referral for behavioral health services until he had received the Appellant’s medical records from Appellant’s primary care provider - Dr. Gary Bell. Because it was taking so long to receive the referral; moreover, the Appellant’s mental status was rapidly deteriorating, the Appellant called Dr. Bell’s office and was provided with an emergency appointment. After evaluating the Appellant, Dr. Bell immediately assigned a diagnosis, referred the Appellant to Palmetto Health Behavioral Care Day Treatment (PHBCDT) of which he escorted to the Appellant to another room had had the Appellant scheduled the appointment with PHBCDT during the Appellant’s visit to the medical practice, and Dr. Bell, during this visit, prescribed the Appellant psychotropic medications to aid in stabilizing the Appellant. Claimant’s APA D, pg. 82.

On September 27, 2013, after an evaluation, the Appellant was admitted into the PHBCDT’s program with an assigned Global Assessment of Functioning (GAF) score of 40.

The Global Assessment of Functioning (GAF) is a numeric scale (1 through 100) used by mental health clinicians and physicians to rate subjectively the social, occupational, and psychological functioning of adults, e.g., how well or adaptively one is meeting various problems-in-living. The scale is presented and described in the DSM-IV-TR on page 34. The score is often given as a range.

31 – 40: Some impairment in reality testing or communication (e.g., speech is at times illogical, obscure, or irrelevant) or major impairment in several areas, such as work or school, family relations, judgment, thinking, or mood (e.g., depressed adult avoids friends, neglects family, and is unable to work; child frequently beats up younger children, is defiant at home, and is failing at school). Please reference Appellant’s Brief, Section G, pgs. 83A – 83D.

On October 8, 2013, Mr. Chuck Roundy, the Appellant’s PHBCDT Patient Advocate/Therapist, presented the Appellant with the completed Family Medical Leave form of which Dr. Thornton McKinley, the Appellant’s PHBCDT attending Psychiatrist and prescriber of psychotropic medications, after his evaluation of the Appellant attached his signature agreeing with Mr. Roundy’s conclusion - “As a result of significant and ongoing job related stress this patient meets the criteria for depression and this has exacerbated medical conditions” (Please reference Claimant’s APA...). Dr. McKinley and Mr. Roundy did not conclude any additional factors that contributed or attributed to the mental/mental injury sustained by the Appellant - only the significant and ongoing job related stress. Upon receiving the FMLA form signed by Dr.

McKinley, the Appellant presented to the FMLA form to the Respondent in a timely manner. Upon receiving the signed FMLA which is medical evidence of the work-related injury, the Respondent once again did not submit the injury report as required by policy even though the Respondent acknowledged the injury and honored the FMLA leave request.

After inquiring of Worker's Compensation benefits that should have been applied for upon the Appellant notifying the Respondent of the injury; moreover, receiving medical evidence (FMLA form) of the causation of the injury, Ms. Brown provided the Appellant with guidance stating that the Appellant should contact Ms. Sharon Brown in the Respondent's State Human Resource office located in the Respondent's administration building. Immediately upon receiving guidance from Ms. S. Brown and receiving the submitted the Worker's Compensation and Election Forms that she provided, the Appellant immediately submitted the Worker's Compensation and Election Forms to the Appellant's immediate supervisor – Mr. Harold Edwards. On January 14th, January 31st, and February 18th 2014, the Appellant consistently followed up with Mr. Edwards, via email, inquiring as to whether or not he had completed and submitted the forms of which the emails that were carbon copied to Ms. V. Brown who was acutely aware that Mr. Edwards had not completed the forms and as the Respondent's Human Resource Director did not offer any assistance or guidance; therefore, the forms did not get completed and submitted as advised by Ms. S. Brown and required by the Respondent's policy.

The Appellant was reinjured on April 23, 2014 via Ms. Marin's bullying and attack against me which was due to the Respondent gross negligence within refusing and failing to appropriately supervise Ms. Marin and ceasing her ongoing reckless, illegal and unethical conduct against the Appellant which in the 2014 situation, for something that the Appellant had absolutely no control over. The Appellant's injury was exacerbated by the Respondent forewarning the Appellant that the housing provider and the Appellant were under a DSS/SLED investigation (please see Appellant's Brief, Sections J & K) which would have crippled the Appellant's ability to secure employment opportunities and could have caused the Appellant's family and the Appellant to become homeless due to the Appellant's inability to secure employment in the Social Work field and meet his monthly financial obligations. The Respondent exacerbated the Appellant's injury by informing the Appellant and the housing provider were under a DSS/SLED investigation of which the Appellant didn't discovered until December 8, 2014 by Ms. Angela Roberts, Respondent's Public Safety Department that Dr. McNeil's claim was false. The Appellant was also informed by Office McClain, Respondent's Public Safety Officer that Lt. Baker was a recent retiree from the Respondent's Public Safety Department; however, Dr. McNeil informed the Appellant that Lt Baker was from SLED and that Lt. Baker would contact the Appellant; so that, the Appellant could provide his account of the alleged abuse verbalized by the patient. If the Respondent would have adhered to its' own policies and procedures, of which I submitted a copy to Dr. McNeil, this incident wouldn't have taken place which is detailed in my response to Commissioner Barden's Finding of Fact 12.

On December 17, 2014, a hearing date was scheduled; however, the Appellant requested additional time to continue his efforts in seeking and securing legal counsel of which the Appellant's efforts were unsuccessful. The Hearing was finally held on April 6, 2015. The Single Commissioner

denied the Appellant's claim stating that the Appellant didn't meet burden of proof requirement under the SC Code 42-1-160. The Single Commissioner's order was file on July 24, 2015.

On August 4, 2015, Ms. Kim Falls, via email, informed the Appellant that he had until August 18, 2015 to submit the appeal. On August 17, 2015, the Appellant submitted Reese SCWCC Questions & Concerns as advised in a correspondence along with supportive documentation; therefore, the Appellant thought he had met the required deadline. On August 19, 2015, the Appellant was informed that the deadline had passed and that the Appellant could file a motion to reinstate the appeal.

On August 19, 2015, the Appellant filed a Motion to Reinstate the Appeal which was granted on September 2, 2015. In a correspondence received by the SCWCC, the Appellant was advised that the Brief was due by November 11, 2015 via uploading on the brief via the SCWCC's website. The Appellant exhausted all efforts to upload the Brief; however, the Appellant efforts were unsuccessful.

Three months later, after submitting the Questions and Concerns document which the Appellant was under the impression was the Brief, the Appellant was informed by Ms. Eugenia Holloman that the Appellant was only able to address errors by the Single Commissioner in the Appeal not evidence or witnesses and that the Appellant only had 10 minutes to do so; therefore, the Appellant requested additional time to modify and submit Appeal to satisfy the requirements of the Appeal. Ms. Hollmon also informed the Appellant that he didn't need to upload the Appeal. She informed the Appellant that the website was for attorneys only which the Appellant was lead to believe via the correspondence that the Appellant received advising to do so.

On November 23, 2015, as granted, the Appellant submitted his claim via email as authorized by the SCWCC's staff. On December 4, 2015 and December 6, 2015, the Appellant emailed SCWCC and SAF revised Briefs. The transition of the November 23, 2015 brief via email was jumbled together and the Appellant made some clerical corrections and additions.

On December 14, 2015, the Full Commission Hearing was held. The Full Commission denied the Appellant affirming the Single Commissioner's order stating that the Appellant failed to prove that he suffered a compensable mental/mental claim under SC Code 42-1-160.

ARGUMENT 1

WHETHER APPELLANT WAS DENIED HIS CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT TO PRESENT ALL EVIDENCE AND HAVE A FAIR HEARING.

Both Commissioner Barden and the Defendant were perfectly aware of the Appellant's intent to review all the evidence previously submitted during the Appeal of which the Appellant replied in the hearing... "That's why I say, I know I need to prepare for an appeal (Worker's Comp Transcript pg. 95, Lines 6-8); Commissioner Barden's Question regarding Appeal" What do you mean you have to prepare for an appeal?" (Worker's Comp Transcript pg. 95, Line 11). Claimant's Response: "Because it's so much stuff in here that you're not hearing and they're not going to ask about". (Worker's Comp Transcript pg. 95, Lines 12-14) and "But what I mean by prepare for an appeal, I – I'll have to go back down here and list date by date and reference each page so it's be much

easier to follow along” (Worker’s Comp Transcript pg. 95, Lines 22-25). Commissioner Barden and the Defendant willfully neglected to inform the Appellant that the Appeals process was only designed to present errors by the Single Commissioner – this is total deception. The Appellant didn’t find out until November 19, 2015 by Ms. Eugenia Hollmon, SCWCC’s Judicial Docketing Director” that I only had a mere “10 minutes” to present “legal or procedural errors done at the first hearing so, nothing new is allowed”; not evidence related to the case and was ignored by Commissioner Barden.

The Defendant was acutely aware that the Appellant wanted to present witnesses and additional evidence to continue supporting the Appellant’s case to the appeal via receiving the “Reese SCWCC Questions & Responses” document from Ms. Amy Bracy, SCWCC’s Judicial Director that Ms. Bracy mailed to the Defendant on September 29, 2015.

Although SCWCC was acutely aware that I wanted to present witnesses and additional evidence to continue substantiating my case of which the SCWCC’s staff received the “Reese SCWCC Questions & Responses” via email on August 17, 2015, the Appellant was notified by Ms. Hollmon on November 19, 2015 via email that the Appellant was unable to present witnesses to the hearing and only allowed to present “legal or procedural error done at the first hearing so, nothing new is allowed”.

Ms. Hollmon argument was that the Appellant should have sought guidance from SWCC regarding the appeal process upon receiving the October 12, 2015; however, based on the fact that Commissioner Barden and Ms. Snyder leading me to believe that the Appellant could present all the evidence in the appeal, the Appellant was prepared to proceed with the evidence. Ms. Bracy was in receipt of the “Reese SCWCC Questions & Responses” which demonstrates the Appellant’s intent in the appeal for 3 months and Ms. Bracy did not advise the Appellant of any protocol restrictions via email, telephone contact, written correspondence, etc.

ARGUMENT 2

WHETHER THE WORKER’S COMPENSATION COMMISSIONER ERRED IN NOT REVIEWING THE POLICIES AND DIRECTIVES THAT GOVERNS THE SCDMH.

The Single Commissioner accepted and entered the Defendant’s Policies and Directives into evidence; however, there’s no evidence that the single commissioner reviewed these items. Reviewing the Defendant’s policies and procedures would have demonstrated that the Defendant allowed Ms. Marin to create and maintain a hostile working environment consistently falsely accusing me of wrongdoings which were only intended to have me quit my employment with the Respondent; moreover, be terminated. The Defendant failed to protect me under a number of its’ Workplace Violence, Harassment Free Workplace, Employee Disciplinary Stands, Employee Grievance and Appeal, Reporting of Adverse Incidents policy and procedures – to name a few; thereby, causing the mental/mental injury of which I sustained which is clinically documented by licensed professionals with years of expertise in their perspective fields.

ARGUMENT 3

WHETHER THE WORKER'S COMPENSATION COMMISSIONER ALLOWED ITSELF AND THE DEFENDANT TO SUPERCEDE THE LAW IN THE COURT'S FINDINGS.

The Respondent denied my claim because they deduced that the Appellant did not receive an injury to his body. The Appellant head is a part of his body, one of the most important part which controls every system in my body; therefore, the denying rational offered by the Respondent is untrue. The Appellant identified the part of the body that was injured on the Appellant's Form 50 (please reference Binder B, Section 22.

The Respondent also identified the reason for denying the Appellant claim because the Respondent claim for benefits must have been reported and filed in a timely manner. Failing to file for worker's compensation benefits is not a Conclusion of Law observed by Commissioner Barden. The Respondent was acutely aware that the Appellant notified my employer in a timely manner of the September 2013 injury via email correspondences provided to Ms. Page Snyder, SAF Attorney/Respondent, during the Appellant's October 22, 2014 Deposition; however, the Respondent failed and refused to filed the injury report as required by the Respondent's policy.

The factor to the matter is, by the Respondent's policy of which the Respondent and Commissioner Barden – based on her experience with the SCWCC, were acutely aware that upon the Respondent's employees notifying the Respondent of a work-place injury, the Respondent is to complete and submit the injury report (see Tab 7: Job-connected Injuries and Occupational Disease; Directive No. 491-79 (5-100); pg. 2, Section III. Evidence presented demonstrated that the Appellant notified the Respondent in a timely manner upon sustaining the injury; however, the Respondent, when it concerns the Appellant, consistently refused to adhere to its' policies and directives that governs the Respondent much like they have historically done against the Appellant which was one of the factors that ultimately caused the Appellant's mental/mental injury.

90 Days Deadline to Report Injury from the date that I reported the injury and requested EAP services: November 13, 2013

Date	Evidence
September 5, 2013	Notice of Injury: Requested EAP services due to Claimant's APA A, pg. 2 "crippling employment issues..."; notified of injury before the November 13, 2013 deadline
September 6, 2013	Ms. Brown acknowledged injury and Claimant's APA A, pg. 2 provided EAP contact information
September 18, 2013	Emailed Mr. Edwards Leave slips Claimant's APA A, pgs. reflecting the need for Sick Leave – 4-8; Tab 10
Work Related Stress	
October 8, 2013	Submitted completed and signed Claimant's APA D, pgs. FMLA form by Dr. McKinney which 92-94 reflects the intensity, frequency, cause and the consequence of the injury

October 9, 2013	The Defendant approved FMLA leave Claimant's APA A, pgs. based on the medical documentation 15-16 provided by Dr. McKinney; therefore,
	the Defendant should have immediately completed and submitted the First Report of Injury (ACORD) form and they elected not to do so
January 6, 2014	Submitted via email Dr. Upchurch's (therapist) completed-FMLA form to Ms. V. Brown and inquired of Worker's Comp; received guidance from Ms. V. Brown on 1/8/14 to contact Ms. Sharon Brown. Followed guidance offered by Ms. S. Brown. Tab 10, pgs. 3-4 of which this correspondence was provided to Ms. Snyder during my Deposition of 10/22/14; please reference Deposition Tab 11, pg. 14, Lines 6-8; pg. 55, Lines 4-10; pg. 61, Lines 12-25; and pg. 62, Lines 1-8. After 7 weeks, My supervisor, Mr. Harold Edwards, did not complete the forms. In requesting, via email, that Mr. Edwards complete the Worker's Compensation forms, I was CC Ms. Vickie Brown who offered no guidance within ensuring that the supervisor completed the forms in a timely manner.
January 14, 2014, January 31, 2014, February 18, 2014	Via email: Followed up with supervisor as advised Tab 10 by Ms. S. Brown; however, the supervisor never completed the injury report
October 22, 2014	Informed Ms. Snyder that Dr. McKinney was my doctor while receiving mental health services at PHB, Deposition Tab 11, pg. 44, Line 25, pg. 45, Lines 1-7

The Respondent states that the Appellant claim didn't meet requirements of the law under Statue 42-1-160 "Injury" and "personal injury" and didn't identify any additional laws; therefore, the Commissioner should have heard the case based on the denial rational concluded the Respondent and no additional laws that's not reflected in the Single Commissioner's signed order (please reference SCWCC FULL COMMISSION BRIEF OF DEFENDANTS/APPELLANTS submitted by the Respondent – Argument pg. 5, 1st para and Commissioner Barden's Order, which was upheld by the Full Commission, Conclusions of Law, pg. 9, #4. Although the Commissioner in her Finding of Fact states that the Appellant didn't meet South Carolina Code 42-1-172: Repetitive Trauma Injury, the Respondent in denying my claim didn't identify this status as a deciding factor; therefore, the Commissioner should have held the Respondent to the Statue of which they concluded the Appellant of not meeting. In the Appellant Appeals, the Appellant demonstrated that the Appellant met South Carolina Code 42-1-172: Repetitive Trauma Injury; however, it seems that this was ignored by the Full Commission; in that, the Commissioners – The Honorable Gene McCaskill (Chairman), The Honorable Melody James, and The Honorable Michael Campbell, "Fully Affirmation the Single Commissioner's Decision and Order" and did not address any of the Appellant's reflected in the Appellant's brief. The Appellant did not based nor did he select Repetitive Trauma as his claim for worker's compensation on the Appellant's Form 50 (please reference Binder B, Section 22); moreover, the Respondent selected "Injury" on its' Form 58 and no other grounds which include not Repetitive Trauma (please reference Binder B, Section 23). Rather than addressing these issues Commissioner McCaskill states that the Appellant should understand that "She, Ms. Snyder, is fighting aggressively for her client". The Appellant

contends that there's a big difference in fighting aggressively for your client versus engaging in illegal and unethical conduct (please reference Argument # 7, pages 23-26).

Statue 42-1-160 "Injury" and "personal injury"

(B) Stress, mental injuries, and mental illness arising out of and in the course of employment unaccompanied by physical injury and resulting in mental illness or injury are not considered a personal injury unless the employee establishes, by a preponderance of the evidence:

- (1) that the employee's employment conditions causing the stress, mental injury, or mental illness were extraordinary and unusual in comparison to the normal conditions of the particular employment; and
- (2) the medical causation between the stress, mental injury, or mental illness, and the stressful employment conditions by medical evidence.

My historical review of the illegal, reckless, malicious, intentional, etc., assaults and attacks that the Appellant consistently endured by the Respondent both in written and verbal forms; moreover, the licensed and qualified professionals clearly demonstrates that the Appellant overwhelmingly met the requirements of this Statue 42-1-160 "Injury" and "personal injury".

According to the SCWCC's Full Commission Brief of Defendants/Appellants submitted by the Respondent, the Respondent states that the actions that took place against me in 2010, that were illegal, unethical, malicious, reckless, intentional, etc., etc., etc. in nature, the Single Commissioner "are barred from adjudication by the Commissioner pursuant to S.C. Code 42-15-40"; yet the Commissioner use the forewarning that the Appellant received from co-workers advising the Appellant against accepting employment with Ms. Marin stating that Ms. Marin was "Crazy" (please also reference Commissioner Barden's Order Finding of Fact 12, pg. 7). Since the Commissioner used this statement of which was made in 2010 by fellow co-workers and benefiting the Respondent within to denying the Appellant's claim, all the evidence during this period and beyond should be entered and accepted into evidence.

In addition to the "Crazy" statement regarding Ms. Marin, Commissioner Barden also used an incident in 2010 stating that..."Claimant admits to threatening clients by stating (jokingly, he contends) that he would throw water on those who did not pay attention" observation (which is false - please reference Appellant's Brief Objections to Commissioner Barden's Finding of Fact #15 pg. 40), to submit her decision to deny my claim. Again, Since the Commissioner used this statement of which was made in 2010 by fellow co-workers and benefiting the Respondent within to denying the Appellant's claim, all the evidence during this period and beyond should be entered and accepted into evidence.

The Appellant contends that his burden of proof was overwhelmingly met to justify awarding worker's compensation benefits under the South Carolina Code 42-1-172: Repetitive Trauma Injury; however, the Commissioner and the Defendant superseded the law upon using Chuck Roundy's statement who was the Appellant's Patient Advocate/Therapist while receiving intensive outpatient psychiatric services, to deny the Appellant's benefits rather than the requirement of Statue 42-1-172 which was overwhelmingly substantiated by the medical documentation submitted into evidence as well as medical documentation disposed of by the Respondent: South

Carolina Code 42-1-172: Repetitive Trauma Injury : “C. As used in this section, “medical evidence” means expert opinion or testimony stated to a reasonable degree of medical certainty, documents, records, or other material that is offered by a licensed and qualified physician”.

The Commissioner states that the Appellant didn't met his burden of proof under the Patient Advocate/Therapist - Chuck Roundy statement rather than that of a qualified licensed physician (please reference SCWCC FULL COMMISSION BRIEF OF DEFENDANTS/APPELLANTS submitted by SAF – Argument pg. 5, 2nd para).

ARGUMENT 4

WHETHER THE WORKER'S COMPENSATION COMMISSIONER ERRED WHEN STATING THAT CONDITIONS I EXPERIENCED WEREN'T UNUSUAL AND EXTRAORDINARY.

The conditions that the Appellant consistently experienced were systematic harassment, intimidation, harassment, slander, unfair treatment, denied earned grievance rights to assist in combating the behaviors experienced and I was consistently denied. The aforementioned illegal acts consistently placed patients in harms way; in that, the Respondent refuse to adhered to its policies and directives when the Appellant consistently requested assistance within ceasing the illegal acts against experienced by the Respondent. Rather than the Respondent providing relief, the Appellant received the following responses form the Respondent's Senior Managers:

- Dr. Robert Bank, CAMHC's Executive Director, could have put immediate stop to this reckless illegal and unethical behavior which was initiated in 2010 after an April's Fool act was committed against the Appellant by his co-workers under Ms. Marin's supervision; however, Dr. Bank elected not to which enable Ms. Marin to continue to maintain the hostile working environment that she created.
- Mr. John Magill, SC Department of Mental Health's State Director did not intervene and consistently ignored the Appellant's pleas for help and simply replied, through his administrative assistant, “I don't like to be in stuff like that”.
- Ms. Eleanor Odom, SC Department of Mental Health's State Human Resource Director, should have appropriately intervened; however, - she elected not to rather she merely deduced that the reason that the Appellant was submitting his 2010 formal complaint was because “My feelings were hurt”.
- Ms. V. Brown, CAMHC's Human Resource Director, did not appropriately intervene informing me that “Harry, I did what I was told to do” which clearly demonstrates that efforts should have been employed to cease the illegal assaults and attacks that the Appellant consistently experienced.
- As Ms. Marin was always the aggressor, she was rewarded for her ongoing illegal attacks and assaults against the Appellant. Although she was demoted from her management position – Program Director over the Link Program, she was reward via being able to return to work the same week after she bullied me and disruptive the harmonious workplace

environment – for an incident she initiated via not adhering to the Respondent’s policies and directives and the direction of the Richland County Probate Court when closing a patient’s case that’s court ordered for mental health treatment; reassigned to one of the Respondent’s Richland County program (Insights); and continued receiving the same pay with less responsibilities: a caseload, but to managerial responsibilities – Ms. Kathy Hugg, Insights Program Director and Ms. Marin’s supervisor.

- Ms. Marin placed patient’s in harm’s way via placing a patient in a placement that Dr. Bank advised against of which that she placed in the placement-described as substandard by Dr. Bank, overdosed on a control substance and the housing provider interfered within ensuring that the patient received medical treatment. The same patient also gave his controlled medications to another patient of which according to the Lexington County Hospital attending physician, the patient could have died if the housing provider that I was accused of having a dual relationship with, wasn’t alert and attentive to the patient’s need; thus, immediately obtaining medical treatment for the patient.
- Ms. Marin falsified documentation accusing me of placing the patient in harms way when the patient was accepted into the Link program of which he was the Program Director. Please reference Claimant’s APA L, pgs. 420-427.
- Melvin Malone, the patient’s Case Manager (CM) misled a patient and the patient’s family informing the family that the CM was going to relocate the patient to another housing provider; however, documenting something entirely different which reflects that he encouraged the patient to focus on his recover. There was no evidence in the patient’s medical record that Mr. Malone documented that he informed the patient that he was going to relocate the patient to another housing provider. With that being said, the patient presented to the clinic accusing the Appellant of informing the housing provider that the CM was going to relocate the patient to an alternate placement. According to the patient, he states that after the Appellant informed the housing provider of the CM’s intent, the housing provider verbally assaulted him which the Appellant was accused by the Respondent of violating the patient’s HIPPA rights and causing harm to the patient which eventually the Appellant was informed by Dr. McNeil that the Appellant and the housing provider were under a DSS/SLED investigation. The efforts of the Appellant to address this matter appropriately and by the Respondent’s policies and directives were painfully unsuccessful. Mr. Malone could have immediately redirected the patient which would have prevented all the issues that happened in September 2013 by being truthful with the patient and involving Ms. Marin in a matter that he knew was untrue rather he allowed this nonsense to fester of which the Appellant suffered immensely via the mental/mental injury.
- Mr. Malone also was a staff member, which is documented in Claimant’s APA, contributed to a another patient decompensating due to his limited to no involvement within engaging the patient in mental health treatment as required in the patient’s court order. Because of Mr. Malone’s actions or lack thereof, the patient discontinued his prescribed psychotropic medications and refusing court ordered mental health treatment; thus becoming extremely delusional. Once the Appellant documented his observations

prior to the patient returning to the Connections program, the Appellant was accused of having a dual relationship with a housing provider.

- Mr. Malone's reckless conduct was rewarded by the Respondent; in that, the Respondent promoted Mr. Malone with managerial position of which he became the CAMHC's Link Program - Program Director, the position that Ms. Marin once held. Whereas the Appellant, who demonstrated professionalism continued experiencing ongoing illegal attacks and assault was out of work for three weeks worrying about whether or not I was going to be terminated. Upon returning to work, Dr. Bank wanted to get rid of the Appellant by trying to force the Appellant into accepting reassignment in other counties even though Respondent's policies and directives states that the agency couldn't reassign me with a certain mile radius. I effectively performed by job duties and was consistently attacked, while other employees are rewarded for inappropriate behaviors which many were illegal in nature. Surely this is not normal and meets the unusual and extraordinary requirement of the law - Statue 42-1-160 (B).
- The illegal assaults and attacks that the Appellant continued experiencing, affected the Appellant's ability to perform his job duties causing the patients to miss essential mental health treatment (reference Harold's EMPS evaluation).
- If it wasn't for the fact that the Appellant secured attorney Mr. Joseph Henry's assistance within addressing the HIPPA violation, based on the Respondent's history, I'm sure I would have been terminated. Even with the Mr. Henry legally demonstrated to the Respondent that the Appellant did not commit any HIPPA violation or any of the Respondent's policies and directives, the Respondent upheld a disciplinary action.
- Also Reference Argument 7 (pgs. 23-26) regarding additional unusual and extraordinary conditions that the Appellant experienced in the workplace with no relief.

ARGUMENT 5

WHETHER THE WORKER'S COMPENSATION COMMISSIONER ERRED WHEN THE DEFENDANT'S WITNESS SUPPORTED THE CLAIMANT'S CASE RATHER THAN THE DEFENDANT.

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