THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM THE S.C. WORKERS' COMPENSATION APPELLATE PANEL

RECEIVED

AUG 29 2017

W.C.C. FILE NO. 1322039

SC Court of Appeals

APPELLATE CASE NO. 2016-000997

HARRY REESE.....Appellant,

vs.

SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH and SC STATE ACCIDENT
FUND,Respondents.

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENTS

PAGE S. HILTON, ESQUIRE
S.C. BAR NO. 100239
ATTORNEY FOR RESPONDENTS
P.O. BOX 102100
COLUMBIA, SC 29221
(803) 896-5896

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

ARGUMENT

DOES THE RECORD ON APPEAL SUPPORT THE APPELLATE PANEL'S DETERMINATION THAT THE APPELLANT FAILED TO ESTABLISH A MENTAL INJURY PURSUANT TO S.C. CODE § 42-1-160(B)?

The Respondents contend that the Appellate Panel properly determined that the Appellant failed to establish a mental injury pursuant to §42-1-160(B). South Carolina Code §42-1-160(B) contains a two part requirement for a compensable mental injury unaccompanied by physical

injury. Part one (1) requires “that the employee’s employment conditions causing the stress, mental injury, or mental illness were extraordinary and unusual in comparison to the normal conditions of the particular employment.” Part two (2) requires medical causation between the stress or mental injury and the stressful employment conditions by medical evidence. The records submitted by the Respondents establish a causal connection between the stress and the Appellants’ employment, and the single commissioner made such a finding, however Respondents request this court to affirm the Appellate Panel’s determination that the Appellant failed establish the requirements of subsection one (1).

Respondents rely upon the statement of Charles Roundy at Palmetto Behavioral Health on October 9, 2013. (R. p. 545) This note discusses the Appellant’s reports of job-related stress and specifically states, “[h]is response to this not uncommon personnel [sic] issue is uncommonly out of proportion to the situation, and the advocate will attempt to discover why the patient takes it so personally.” (*Id.*) Respondents contend that this statement shows that claimant’s work conditions were not extraordinary and unusual.

Further, Appellant’s allegations involve personnel issues, disciplinary actions and whether or not the employer follows its own policies. The single commissioner attempted to parse through the Appellant’s complaints and made specific findings as to some of the personnel issues mentioned. One write-up from October 2013 dealt with an alleged HIPAA violation. (R. p. 9) The single commissioner noted that the disciplinary documents note that the offense to have been committed without malicious intent. The single commissioner found that the write up was not extraordinary and unusual. (*Id.*) Respondents contend that the specificity of the single commissioner’s findings indicate that the single commissioner thoroughly reviewed the evidence submitted.

As to Appellant's complaints of his former supervisor, Maria Marin, the single commissioner notes that he brought no witnesses to corroborate any extraordinary or unusual conditions regarding this former supervisor and that the former supervisor had not supervised the claimant since 2010. (R. p. 10) Respondents argue that any actions that took place in 2010 are barred from adjudication by the Commission pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 42-15-40.

Appellant alleges mental injury resulting from investigations into various complaints over personnel issues. South Carolina Code §42-1-160(C) states specifically,

mental injuries ... are not considered compensable if they result from any event or series of events which are incidental to normal employer/employee relations including, but not limited to, personnel actions by the employer such as disciplinary actions, work evaluations, ... except when these actions are taken in an extraordinary and unusual manner.

The single commissioner reviewed the voluminous evidence and the lengthy testimony and determined that personnel issues were not handled in an extraordinary or unusual manner. (R. pp. 9 & 11)

In regard to the remaining arguments contained in Appellant's Initial Brief, Respondents shall attempt to respond to these succinctly. Argument 1 appears to allege an error by Respondents and the single commissioner in informing the Appellant of the appeals process. Respondents contend that they were under no obligation to help the Appellant with his appeal and it would be improper for any member of the South Carolina Workers' Compensation Commission to advise the Appellant in formulating his appeal. Argument 2 alleges that the single commissioner did not review the policies and directives that govern the South Carolina Department of Mental Health. There is nothing from the single commissioner's Order and Decision to indicate that she did not review the policy information submitted by the Appellant. Additionally, a violation of agency policy is not within the jurisdiction of the South Carolina

Worker's Compensation Commission as it does not fall within Title 42 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. Appellant's Arguments 3 through 6 are addressed above and the Respondents reiterate that the decision of the single commissioner is supported by the evidence in the record and was fully affirmed by the Appellate Panel.